Minutes

BOARD OF ELECTIONS AND REGISTRATION BOARD MEETING    

12 October 2023 at 5:00 PM

Board members present: Maurice Hurry, Kevin Evans and Chad Word

Staff present: Milton Kidd, Tesha Green, Ann Bolen, Cameron Fairley, Heather James and Philbert Smith

Legal counsel present: Jonathan Nussbaum

Call to Order

Mr. Hurry called the meeting to order at 5:00pm.


Approval of Agenda

Mr. Hurry requested a motion to approve the meeting’s agenda.  Mr. Word made the motion and Mr. Evans seconded.  The agenda was approved unopposed.  


Approval of Minutes from 14 September 2023

Mr. Hurry requested a motion to approve the previous meeting’s minutes.  Mr. Word made the motion and Mr. Evans seconded.  The minutes were approved unopposed.


Citizen Comment

There were no citizen comments.


Felon Hearings

Mrs. Green noted that 53 felon notices were generated and issued but no responses.


Office Operations 

Mr. Kidd announced that on September 14th, the office met with the School Board to discuss the change of polling location from Chapel Hill High School from the Church at Chapel Hill.  He explained that the School Board met amongst itself on October 3rd to consider the proposal and it has since signed off on the intergovernmental agreement.  He added that if the Board of Elections approves this polling location change, he will present before the Board of Commissioners at their October 16th meeting to accept the agreement.  He added that the vote will take place after the office operation report.

Mr. Smith announced that Logic and Accuracy testing began on Wednesday, October 4th.  The process has concluded and all election equipment including the server, BMDs, and tabulators for Absentee by Mail, Advanced Voting and Election Day has been tested.  He added that the office has been working with KnowInk, the vendor that manages the electronic poll books used during in-person voting to receive the voter file and he anticipates this will be done by the end of the week in time for early voting.

Mr. Kidd added that he has been dissatisfied with KnowInk concerning the time frame of this voter file and how close this will be delivered to the start of Early Voting.

Mr. Hurry asked if this will affect Douglas County’s ability to start Early Voting.

Mr. Kidd explained that there are backup procedures in place to ensure voting will begin October 16th. 

Mrs. Bolen announced that poll worker training has been completed and all precincts are staffed and ready for Election Day.

Mrs. James explained that Absentee ballot mailout begins on Monday, October 16th, which is the first day that all received applications can be issued.  She added that Advanced Voting begins the same day at the Douglas County Courthouse for voters that reside in either the City of Douglasville or Villa Rica from 8:30am to 5:30pm Monday-Friday until November 3rd with Saturday Voting from 9:00am to 5:00pm on October 21st and 28th.  

Mrs. Green announced that one of the department’s voter outreach coordinators has worked with all senior services facilities in the county to assist with voter registration activities and absentee ballot applications prior to the voter registration deadline which was October 10th.

Mr. Kidd added that the county maintains a backup voter file, in the event that the state equipment is not ready voting would still continue, noting that a secondary vendor is used to assign credit to voters.      

Mr. Word asked for the name of this product.

Mr. Kidd informed him that it is called EasyVote.  He explained that ID is presented at the first station which produces an absentee ballot application and the voter’s oath.

Mr. Kidd explained that during the meeting a vote will take place to move the Church at Chapel Hill precinct to a new polling location.  

Mr. Word asked for clarification regarding the new polling place.

Mr. Kidd explained that the current polling location at Church of Chapel Hill will be moving to Chapel Hill High School.  

Mr. Hurry requested a motion to approve the change of polling place.  Mr. Word made the motion and Mr. Evans seconded.  The motion was approved unopposed.


Old Business

	Mr. Word’s Discussion of Deceased Voters

Mr. Kidd explained that there is a tabled discussion regarding deceased voters and voter challenges.  He explained that if this is to be discussed, a motion must be made to untable the discussion.

Mr. Hurry suggested that the discussion remain tabled until all 5 board members are present.

Mr. Word explained that he was okay with keeping it tabled, but took the opportunity to discuss the process generally.  

Mr. Kidd explained that if the discussion is not untabled, this needs to be established as a new conversation.

Mr. Word explained that the tabled discussion concerns hearings on the identified voters, but noted a concern that there are people who are not identified by normal procedures and he believes it is the duty of the Board of Elections to maintain the voter rolls.  He added that there is now established policy to handle these voter challenges.  

Mr. Word asked for a timeframe for when the established state procedures will be completed for voter rolls.

Mrs. Green explained that there will be one more mail out for the year in December.  She added that it will be before the 90 day federal deadline.

Mr. Kidd asked Mr. Nussbaum for clarification regarding the powers of the Board of Election and whether it can be discussed in an open meeting and asked for a synopsis of what legal counsel has discovered.

Mr. Nussbaum clarified that this was a separate topic and noted that, in general, there is the statewide procedure that prunes inactive/deceased voters as its provided by the office of vital records.  He noted that there is now established procedures to handle voter challenges but added that there is little else information provided regarding other procedures.

Mr. Word asked the staff if any vital statistics have been received since February 2023.

Mr. Kidd answered that they have been provided but not on a consistent basis.  
Mr. Word added that this is a matter of concern and causes him to question the reliability of the state’s process and the Board should supplement these processes with its own.

Mr. Kidd asked for clarification from Mr. Nussbaum if the board has the statutory authority to delete a voter from the rolls outside of a standard voter challenge.

Mr. Nussbaum explained that there are three normal processes: through county vital statistics, voter challenges, and under OCGA §21-2-231 if information regarding deaths through certain verifiable sources.

Mr. Word asked if the board has authority to contact vital statistics if information is not coming properly through GARVIS.

Mr. Nussbaum explained that he would follow up with a response regarding that.

Mr. Word thanked the staff and the Board for the opportunity to serve on the board and expressed his passion for ensuring accurate voter rolls. 

Mr. Hurry suggested that board members work with staff to determine the results of the individuals referenced in the tabled discussion.

Mr. Word ended noting that the board should do its best to ensure that voter rolls are as accurate as possible.

Mr. Kidd added that the staff takes direction from the board.


Vote to Approve Change of Polling Place

Mr. Hurry requested a vote to approve the change.  The vote to move the Church at Chapel Hill precinct to Chapel Hill High School passed 3-0.  There was no further discussion. 


New Business

There was no new business to discuss.

	
Board Member Concerns

There were no board member concerns. 


Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 5:35.
	

